Neath Port Talbot AGENDA
w=~— (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

CYD-BWYLLGOR CORFFOREDIG DE-ORLLEWIN
CYMRU - IS-BWYLLGOR TRAFNIDIAETH
RANBARTHOL

10.00 AM DYDD LLUN, 9 HYDREF 2023

O BELL TRWY TEAMS

Rhaid gosod pob ffén symudol ar y modd distaw ar gyfer parhad y
cyfarfod

Gweddarlledu/Cyfarfodydd Hybrid:

Gellir ffilmio’r cyfarfod hwn i'w ddarlledu’n fyw neu’n ddiweddarach drwy
wefan y cyngor. Drwy gymryd rhan, rydych yn cytuno i gael eich ffilmio ac
i'r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny gael eu defnyddio at ddibenion
gweddarlledu a/neu hyfforddiant o bosib.

1. Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau

3. Cynllun Gweithredu'r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol (CTRh)
(Tudalennau 3 - 16)

4, Blaenraglen Waith (Tudalennau 17 - 18)

5.  Eitemau brys
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn 6l disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag
Adran 100BA(6)(b) o Ddeddf LIlywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i

diwygiwyd).

K.Jones
Prif Weithredwr




Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot Dydd Mawrth, 3 Hydref 2023

Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd D.Price

Cynghorwyr: E.Thomas, A.Stevens, R.Sinnett a/ac
W.F.Griffiths

Parc
Cenedlaethol
Cynrychiolwyr: M.James a/ac E.Roderick



Eitem yr Agenda3

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE
REGIONAL TRANSPORT SUB COMMITTEE

9™ OCTOBER 2023

Report of the Chief Executive

Report Title: REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN (RTP) - IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Purpose of Report To seek approval for RTP Implementation
Plan to be submitted to the CJC
Recommendation(s) It is recommended that the Implementation

Plan appended to this report is submitted to
the CJC for approval prior to submitting to
Welsh Government:

Report Author Stuart Davies Head of Highways &
Transportation, City & County of Swansea
Council

Mark Wade Director of Place, City & County
of Swansea Council

Finance Officer Chris Moore

Legal Officer Craig Griffiths

Introduction / Background:

The Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) for South West Wales has been mandated to produce
a Regional Transport Plan (RTP) for the region by Welsh Government in conformity with the
Transport (Wales) Act (2006) and to complement Liwybr Newydd: Wales Transport Strategy
(2022).

The region has been tasked with producing an Implementation Plan setting out how the
Regional Transport Plan (RTP) will be developed and adopted. It is expected that this
implementation plan be submitted to Welsh Government by 315t October 2023.

The Implementation Plan is shown in Appendix 1

Timescales:

Following the meeting of this Sub Committee, it is intended that the RTP Implementation Plan

will be presented to the CJC meeting on the 24t October 2023 for approval so that it can be
submitted to Welsh Government prior to the 315t October 2023.

1
Tudalen3



Financial Impacts:

The Implementation Plan is a statement of intent as to how a Regional Transport Plan will
be developed for the South West Wales region. Hence the plan itself does not have a direct
financial impact.

The CJC has allocated funding to assist with the development of the RTP and Welsh
Government have indicated that they will make available £125k of funding in the current
financial year towards the development of the RTP.

The full cost of the RTP is yet to be determined but it is clear that further funding will be
required. The funding will need to be provided to enable the plan to be progressed and this
will need to be identified and allocated through discussion with Welsh Government.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

The CJC is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic
duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need
to:

o Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Acts.

o Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

o Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-economic
disadvantage

o Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language

o Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

o Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

In recognition of the above duties, the CJC has adopted an Integrated Impact Assessment
(IIA) Tool which allows for a 2 stage approach to be undertaken to measure any potential
impact of its decisions. It is not considered that an Integrated Impact Assessment (lIA) is
required for this report as it does not seek a substantive policy decision from Members

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan includes
the CJC’s Equality Objective which is set out below for ease of reference:

“To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

(&) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of eliminating
inequality caused by poverty;

(b) The achievement of the Equality statement set out in Liwybr Newydd which is to
make our transport services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by aiming to

2
Tudalen4


https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021

remove the physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic and economic
barriers that prevent people from using sustainable transport, and

(c) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of cohesive
communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is able to
participate in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room for racism and /
or discrimination of any kind.”

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Alignment with CJC Corporate Plan 2023-2028 and the identified CJC Well-being objectives:

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales
must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of
improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking
action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the
‘well-being goals’.

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan contains
the CJC’s well-being objectives and frames the corporate direction of travel. To this end, it is
considered that the recommendation(s) contained within this report align(s) to the corporate
policy framework of the CJC as set out within its Corporate Plan, most notably in terms of
Well-being Objective 3 as outlined below for ease of reference:

Well-Being Objective 2

“To produce a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales that is founded on
collaboration and enables the delivery of a transport system which is good for our current
and future generations of people and communities, good for our environment and good for
our economy and places (rural and urban).”

Workforce Impacts:

The CJC has approved resources to support the development of the RTP and hence
recruitment processes are being followed to secure support. In addition, the region will
procure specialist support as necessary to develop the RTP.

Legal Impacts:

The Implementation Plan is the first stage of producing a Regional Transport Plan which is a
duty placed on the CJC by Welsh Government pursuant to the Local Government and
Elections (Wales) Act 2021. The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Regulations
came into force on 15t April 2021 the timeframes for the discharging of specific functions.
Risk Management Impacts:

None.

Consultation:

No formal consultation required for the purpose of this report.

3
Tudalen5


https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

Reasons for Proposed Decision:
To meet the duty placed on the CJC.
Implementation of Decision:

To seek Members approval to progress the implementation plan to the Corporate Joint
Committee, prior to submission to Welsh Government.

Appendices:

1. Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

List of Background Papers:

Welsh Government Regional Transport Plans: Guidance for Corporate Joint Committees

4
Tudalen6



Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for
South West Wales

Implementation Plan for Developing a
Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

T

OGOUN VOpe ca\bot Co,

& bv 0‘\\4. ll/],}/&
‘\V' / oA \Q 0,
E 7 @ P S
5 S omor Sir Gar B $ a
> B £ . G

o @ Carmarthenshire %, —

He, ¥ Qo g R

4 sip pB€" Mty Coo® Sirol Castell-ned

Tudalen7



Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

1. INTRODUCTION

The Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) for South West Wales has been mandated to produce a Regional
Transport Plan (RTP) for the region by Welsh Government in conformity with the Transport (Wales) Act
(2006)* and to complement Llwybr Newydd: Wales Transport Strategy (2022)2. The RTP should be
developed in line with the guidance issued by Welsh Government.

The RTP will be reflective of the aims, priorities and strategies for transport in the area covered by the
following local authorities:

e Carmarthenshire County Council

e (City & County of Swansea

e Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

e Pembrokeshire County Council

This area is shown in Figure 1:

Neath

B Posl Talbol

7
Neath

Joint Local Transport Plan for South West Wales Port Talbot

[Milford Haven JllZ I3 i Trunk Roads
167 Key settlements {0 ‘A’ Roads
=={0— Motorways
Settlements Outside Region o Rail Network

Plan One - South West Wales Region

© covwn copyright. AR Aights reserved. Neath Port Talbot CBC 100023752 2009

Figure 1 — Area Considered in the South West Wales Regional Transport Plan.

! Transport (Wales) Act 2006 (legislation.gov.uk)
2 Liwybr Newydd: a new Wales transport strategy | GOV.WALES

Tudalen8


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/5/contents
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd

Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Local authorities have been asked to develop an Implementation Plan setting out how the RTP will be
developed and adopted. It is expected that this implementation plan be submitted to Welsh
Government by 31 October 2023.




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

2. PROJECT GOAL

This Implementation Plan sets out how it is intended that the RTP for South West Wales will be
developed. The aim of this piece of work is to:

Develop a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales which sets out a plan for transport in the
region that supports economic growth, encourages modal shift away from private car use, and reduces
the negative environmental impact of our transport network.

It is expected that a proposed final version of the RTP be submitted to Welsh Government by 29t
March 2025.

The RTP when completed and approved by Welsh Ministers will replace the existing SWW Joint
Transport Plan 2015-2020.

It is imperative that the RTP is reflective of the Wales Transport strategy and aligned to other National,
Regional, Local strategies and priorities, as shown in Figure 2.

| WALES NATIONAL POLICY |
LLWYBR NEWYDD: THE WALES NATIONAL TRANSPORT WELL-BEING OF FUTURE
TRANSPORT STRATEGY DELIVERY PLAN GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT

l GUIDANCE TO CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEES ON REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLANS |

[ SOUTH WEST WALES REGIONAL & CIC PRIORITIES |

I EMERGING STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN ]

REGIONAL
TRANSPORT LOCAL AUTHORITY PLANS AND POLICIES |
PLAN
CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CITY & COUNTY OF SWANSEA
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY
brel e PEMBROKESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
KEY STAKEHOLDERS
LOCAL AUTHORITY LEADS &

SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL RARTEGLID HAIDERS TRANSPORT FOR WALES

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS - TO BE IDENTIFIED

Figure 2: Policy Context for Regional Transport Plan




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

3. SCOPING THE KEY WORK PACKAGES

Table 1 below shows what are considered to be the key work packages that require completing to
develop the South West Wales RTP.

Developing the Case for Change

e Llywbr Newydd: Wales Transport Strategy

e National Transport Delivery Plan

Local Authority Local Development Plans
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
Local Authority Transport Plans and Council Plans
Previous Joint Local Transport Plan

Review of
Evidence and
Identify Issues
and
Opportunities

Identify transport aspirations for the Region.
GIS mapping.
SW Transport Model findings.

Consideration will include:

e Rurality and access to services

e Car dependency

e Household Access to Car by area

e Bus — improvements including Fflecsi, TrawsCymru,
opportunities from franchising and future plans etc.

e Rail - opportunity for SWML proposals and connections;
West Wales Frequency;

e Swansea Bay and South West Wales Metro

e Road network: M4; A40

e Port Access

e Walking and cycling

e Housing and economic growth

e Supporting tourism

e Supporting industry

e Origin and destination of trips, and importance of cross-
border movement

e Decarbonisation of transport

Work Package Description Key Dates
Member and | Seek the views of the CJC representatives, portfolio holders | CJCis essential
key and/or other Members, and key stakeholders about the issues to | to the process
stakeholder be captured in the case for change and the policies / schemes Approval at
engagement needed to address them. CJC Meeting
Agree approach to engaging members and key stakeholders. A | 23rd January
consistent approach should be utilised to engage members 2024
across all four authorities.
Define the Description of the South West Wales area including a map Submit To
Area of Study | showing the 4 authorities etc. Welsh
Government
Set out the Set out the local impact on National, Regional and Local plans | 29" February
Strategic Case | and strategies including but not limited to: 2024

Tudalenit




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Identify RTP Development of a vision for the RTP.
Vision
Consideration to be given to:

e Access to employment, services and attractions

e High quality active travel and public transport networks

e Decarbonisation

Current JTP vision:

To improve transport and access within and beyond the region to
facilitate economic regeneration, reduce deprivation and
support the development and use of more sustainable and
healthier modes of transport.

Identify RTP Development of SMART objectives for the RTP aligned to the
Smart priorities in the Wales Transport Strategy.
Objectives
Consideration to be given to:
e Reduce carbon emissions and enhancing the
environment
e Reducing inequality/transport poverty
e Wellbeing
e Support businesses
e Improving public transport connectivity
e Making public transport more affordable
e Enhancing rail services and improving cross-border
connectivity
e Sustainable access to main centres of tourist demand
e Supporting the tourist economy
e Supporting growth in Enterprise Zones and Free Ports
e Increasing active travel
e Supporting / encouraging the take up of Zero emission
vehicles
e Safety
e Enhancing freight connectivity to key destinations;
including ports

Current JTP higher level outcomes focus on:
e Transport network resilience
e Capacity and safety enhancements
e Integration with strategic PT services
e Improved links to employment
e Access to services
e Encouraging sustainable travel

Governance Identify Governance arrangements for development, sign off and
adoption of the RTP both within the CJC and LA’s.
Determination of the stages of development that the RTP needs
to be approved i.e. prior to public engagement, prior to
submission of draft to WG etc.




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Develop a Develop a stakeholder management and public engagement
Stakeholder plan to enable the message to reach as many residents as
management | possible.

and public

engagement Consideration to be given to:

Plan e Identification of key partners and stakeholders.

e Agreeing approach for engaging key partners and
stakeholders.

e Method of engagement — working groups, forumes,
email, formal consultations, online engagement etc.

e Production of engagement materials — all engagement
materials to be bilingual and be clear and concise.

e Agree and develop a feedback platform such as a
focused questionnaire.

e Agree the required number and location of face-to-face
public engagement events.

e Agree arrangements and approach for engaging with the
CJC and elected members from each LA.

e Consider innovative ways of engaging with hard to reach
groups and those with protected characteristics.

e Method for recording engagement activities and
consultation responses (in accordance with GDPR
regulations).




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Developing the Regional Transport Plan

Initial Draft of RTP

Work Package Description Key Dates
Identifying Assess the objectives of the RTP against the Wales Transport | First draft
the High Level | strategy and other National, Regional, Local strategies and | BEFORE PUBLIC
interventions | priorities. CONSULTATION
and policies Identify the policies that will address the issues/opportunities | to be submitted
and support delivery of the objectives. to WG by 29%"
Review and align with work undertaken on the emerging | May 2024.
Strategic Development Plan.
Balancing the priorities of policies to deliver the needs in both
urban and rural areas.
Review expected outcomes from existing JTP.
Review of Undertake a review of the schemes included the existing JTP,
schemes from | considering:
existing JTP e What has been delivered (remove)
e What is no longer considered a priority (remove)
e What cannot be delivered in light of policy and budget
changes (remove)
e What new challenges/opportunities have been
identified that require further consideration
Identify a Identify and agree a robust methodology for assessing schemes
methodology | against impact on Wales Transport Strategy priorities and sub
for prioritising | priorities.
schemes
Prioritise Prioritise schemes using the methodology identified above.
schemes
Final Draft of RTP
Work Package Description Key Dates
WG feedback | Review and action WG feedback Final draft to be
submitted to
Consultation Consultation in accordance with stakeholder management plan. | WG by 31*
feedback Review consultation responses and action consultation | October 2024.
feedback.
Governance In line with identified requirements.
Final RTP
Work Package Description Key Dates
WG feedback | Review and action WG feedback Final report to
be submitted to
Governance In line with identified requirements. WG 29™ March

2025.

Tudateni4




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Develop the Integrated Well-being Assessment

Step 1 Review the Case for Change, undertake scoping to | First draft
establish what specialist work packages may be needed | BEFORE PUBLIC
to develop the IWBA including any supporting statutory | CONSULTATION
impact assessments, and develop a brief/s to commission | to be submitted to
that work and ensure it is fed into the process of | WG by 29*" May 2024.
developing the RTP.

Step 2 With reference to WelTAG guidance an integrated well- | Final draft to be
being framework should be developed and agreed with | submitted to WG by
key partners. Options for projects should be reviewed | 31* October 2024.
against that framework.

Step 3 When the draft RTP is published for consultation: it | Final report to be
should be accompanied by a draft IWBA report showing | submitted to WG 29"
how well-being has been taken into account and how the | March 2025.
five ways of working have been followed.

Step 4 When the final RTP is submitted to WG it should be
accompanied by a final IWBA report taking on board any
consultation responses.

Public and Stakeholder consultation
Work Package Description Key Dates

Plan proposed
consultation

This will be as per the stakeholder management and
public engagement plan

Consultation after
submission of first

period and draft of RTP and IWBA
stakeholder to WG (late May
engagement 2024).
Monitoring and Evaluation Plan
Work Package Description Key Dates
Contribution Develop a Monitoring and Evaluation Plan that monitors | To be submitted
to National regional progress in achieving the National and Regional | following the approval
Priorities objectives. by WG of the RTP.
Agree Identify an appropriate set of quantitative and qualitative
measures to measures that can be used to monitor progress of the RTP
monitor and to inform CJC annual reports and three vyear
assessment of the RTP.
Equalities Impact Assessment
Work Package Description Key Dates
Undertake An EqlA will be undertaken in line with best practice and | In line with WG RTP
EqlA will include a Welsh language impact assessment. guidance

requirements

Environmental Impact Assessment and Habitats Regulation Assessment

Undertake EIA
and HRA

EIA and HRA will be undertaken in line with statutory
requirements.

In line with WG RTP
guidance
requirements

Note activities relating to the easy read version and the Welsh translation version will be completed
once the RTP has been signed off by the WG.




Implementation Plan for Developing a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

4,

RISK IDENTIFICATION

At this early stage, the high level risks associated with delivering a Regional Transport Plan for South
West Wales are considered to be:

R/
0’0

Y/
0'0

Y/
0'0

Y/
0'0

Political agreement on polices and high level outcomes
e To be mitigated through engagement and discussion throughout the process.

Regional agreement on prioritised RTDP schemes list
e To be mitigated through the development of a robust and impartial scoring
methodology

Challenging timescales for submission and adoption of the RTP

Available resource within Local Authorities to deliver the RTP
e Dedicated Programme Manager for the RTP to be appointed.

Number of specialist studies to be untaken in the development of the RTP and lack of funding to
deliver.
e Funding from WG to deliver.

5. TIMELINE AND KEY DATES
13th July 2023 Guidance issued to CJC's
31st October 2023 CJC to submit implementation plan to WG
29th February 2024 CJC to submit RTP case for Change (including SMART objectives) to WG

29th May 2024

CJC to submit initial draft of RTP, IWBA and RTDP to WG (before public
consultation)

31st October 2024 CJC to submit final draft of RTP, IWBA and RTDP to WG
29th March 2025 CJC to submit final RTP, IWBA and RTDP to WG
30th June 2025 WG decision on approval of RTP.




J1uarepn|

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT
COMMITTEE — REGIONAL TRANSPORT SUB

COMMITTEE
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

2023-2024

yepuaby JA woal3g



Meeting Date
2024

Agenda Item

Contact Officer

12 February
2024

Progress Update on Regional Transport Plan (RTP)

Dave Griffiths, Daniel John, Darren Thomas and Stuart

Davies
Funding Update 2023/24 — Resources to Deliver the Regional Transport | Dave Griffiths, Daniel John, Darren Thomas and Stuart
Plan (RTP) Davies

Transport for Wales Regional Priorities Overview — Rail and Bus Services
Update

Ben George (TFW)

gTuaepn L




	Agenda
	3 Cynllun Gweithredu'r Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol (CTRh)
	Appendix 1 - RTP Implementation Plan - SW Wales DRAFT V2

	4 Blaenraglen Waith

